
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 13, 2005 – 3:00 P.M. 
J. NEWTON COHEN, SR. ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

  
Present:  Arnold S. Chamberlain, Chairman 

Jim Sides, Vice-Chairman 
    Steve Blount, Member 
Chad Mitchell, Member  
Frank Tadlock, Member 

 
Assistant Clerk to the Board Carolyn Athey, County Attorney Jay Dees and 
Interim County Manager/Finance Director Leslie Heidrick were also present. 

 
Chairman Chamberlain convened the meeting at 3:00 pm. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell provided the Invocation and also led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved to approve the Agenda as presented followed by a 
second from Commissioner Mitchell.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain quickly mentioned that he wished to add a Proclamation 
to the agenda.   
 
Commissioner Sides withdrew his motion and moved to approve the agenda as 
presented with the addition of the Proclamation.  Commissioner Mitchell 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
ADDITION 
Chairman Chamberlain read a Proclamation in support of President George 
Bush’s National Day of Prayer and Remembrance for the Victims of Hurricane 
Katrina. 
 

 1



Commissioner Mitchell moved to accept the Proclamation as read.  
Commissioner Blount seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION REGARDING HIRING OF INTERIM COUNTY MANAGER  
Chairman Chamberlain called William (Bill) Cowan forward and he also 
introduced Mr. Cowan’s wife, Teresa.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the floor for discussion regarding the proposed 
contract for Mr. Cowan as Interim County Manager. 
 
Commissioner Blount referred to Item #2 in the contract regarding Organization, 
Position and Authority and he suggested the following changes: 

• Adding “and our budget ordinance” to the end of the second sentence. 
• Striking the words “Chairman and” in the first sentence and leave Board 

of Commissioners  
 
Commissioner Blount discussed Item #3 in the contract pertaining to Reporting, 
Consultations and Time and he verified with Mr. Cowan that he would be 
available to meet with the Commissioners more frequently than one (1) time per 
week.  Mr. Cowan confirmed that he would meet with Board members as 
frequently as necessary.  Mr. Cowan also confirmed to Commissioner Blount that 
he would be present at Commission meetings. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain reviewed the changes to the proposed contract as 
requested by Commissioner Blount.    
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Blount, County Attorney Jay Dees 
provided the following language to be added at the end of the second sentence 
in Item #2, “including the Rowan County Budget Ordinance duly adopted on the” 
date, month and year. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock questioned Item #7 and asked if the compensation of 
$150 per week for meals was the maximum.  Mr. Cowan responded yes. 
 
Commissioner Blount raised the issue of mileage, which was also listed under 
Item #7, (ii), and he asked if the County would reimburse Mr. Cowan for travel 
expenses?  Chairman Chamberlain and Mr. Cowan explained that the second 
sentence under (ii) was “just an addition” to the explanation pertaining to travel 
reimbursement. 
 
Commissioner Sides said that during the Personnel Board meeting he had 
expressed concern with the total authority of the Interim County Manager and he 
suggested that the Board limit actions of hiring/firing without prior Personnel 
Board and Commission approval.   
 

 2



Commissioner Blount asked if the limitations would pertain to department heads 
only or would the limitations be all inclusive.  Commissioner Sides responded 
that issues with department heads and those in supervisory positions should be 
presented to the Personnel Board. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain added that the issue had been discussed with Mr. Cowan 
and he had made it clear that he “doesn’t want that responsibility by himself 
during this period of time.”   
 
Chairman Chamberlain said he had made it clear to Mr. Cowan that he would be 
treated as though “he would be here for a long time” even though the job was an 
interim position.  Chairman Chamberlain said as Chairman he would have to 
communicate with Mr. Cowan on a regular basis but that he would make sure the 
other Board members were kept informed.  
 
In response to a query from Interim County Manager/Finance Director Leslie 
Heidrick regarding clarification for the 401K plan in Item #1, Mr. Dees said he 
had made notes to modify the paragraph.   
 
Ms. Heidrick also mentioned Item #7, (ii), and explained that the IRS mileage rate 
was recently changed to .48 cents per mile.  Ms. Heidrick suggested changing 
the language to state “the current rate.”  Ms. Heidrick said the County would 
need to discuss whether it wanted to change its current rate of .405 to reflect the 
IRS mileage rate.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain instructed Mr. Dees to use language in the contract for 
the “current rate.” 
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the floor to entertain a motion based on the 
changes that were discussed for the contract. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved to enter into an agreement with Mr. Cowan based 
on the contract before the Board with the modifications that have been discussed 
at this meeting subject to a final review by Mr. Dees of those terms.  
Commissioner Tadlock seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain noted that the County Attorney would be required to sign 
the contract as well as the Chairman and Mr. Cowan. 
 
Upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner Sides 
dissenting. 
 
Commissioner Sides said he wanted to make it clear that he was very impressed 
with Mr. Cowan’s qualifications.  Commissioner Sides said he had been part of 
the Personnel Committee that had conducted Mr. Cowan’s interview.  
Commissioner Sides said he disagreed with the pay scale for Mr. Cowan and he 

 3



explained that while Rowan County is not a poor county, the average income is 
$37,000 per year.  Commissioner Sides said he had suggested $400 per day as 
opposed to $480 per day.  Commissioner Sides said it was his opinion that 
“we’re paying Mr. Cowan in a day’s time what most citizens in Rowan County 
make in a week.”  Commissioner Sides said he fully intended to work with and 
support Mr. Cowan but that he could not agree on the salary. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain welcomed Mr. Cowan and he asked Mr. Dees when the 
contract would be finalized.  Mr. Dees said he would make the changes “today” 
and provide it for the Monday (September 19, 2005) meeting for approval. 
 
Mr. Cowan thanked the Board for its vote of confidence and said he looked 
forward to working with the Commissioners as well as department heads, elected 
officials and community leaders to help move the agenda forward over the next 
several months.  Mr. Cowan said he would communicate with each Board 
member on an equal basis and “together we’ll move Rowan County forward in a 
positive direction.”     
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Sides informed the Board that the Mr. Dees had drafted a letter 
regarding the speed zone for Millbridge Elementary School.  Commissioner 
Sides said he would be glad to provide the Board members with a copy of the 
letter.  Commissioner Sides said he felt it was important to keep the matter on 
the “front burner.” 
 
With no further business Chairman Chamberlain adjourned the meeting at  
3:23 pm. 
 
     
   
    Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
     Carolyn Athey 
     Assistant Clerk to the Board 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 4



 5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Citizens with disabilities requiring special needs to access the services or public 
meetings of Rowan County Government, should contact the County Manager's 

Office, three days prior to the meeting by calling (704) 636-0361. 


	ADDITION
	DISCUSSION REGARDING HIRING OF INTERIM COUNTY MANAGER 
	ADJOURNMENT

